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For Rocky Mountain Power:
Kat herine Smth, Esgq.
ROCKY MOUNTAI N POWER
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For the Division of Public Utilities:
Patrick Grecu, Esq.
UTAH ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFI CE
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Salt Lake City, UT 84111
PGrecu@agut ah. gov

For Nucor Steel Utah:
Jeremy Cook, Esq.
COHNE KI NGHORN
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PROCEEDI NGS

[On the record at 9:00 a.m]

CHAI R FENN: Good norning, everyone. Wlconme to the Public
Servi ce Conmm ssion hearing this norning.

We're here in the matter of Rocky Muntain Power's
application for approval of the 2025 Energy Bal anci ng Account, or
EBA. It's Docket No. 25-035-01

We'll take up a notion that's pending after we take
appearances for the record. Let's start with Rocky Mountain Power.

M5. SMTH: Good norning. Katherine Smith on behal f of
Rocky Mount ai n Power .

CHAI R FENN: Good norning, Ms. Smith. Wl cone.

MR. GRECU. Patrick Grecu on behalf of the Division of
Public Utilities.

CHAIR FENN:  And with you is?

MR GRECU:. M. Gary Smith

CHAIR FENN:  And he'll be your witness today, right?

MR. GRECU:. That's correct.

CHAI R FENN: Well, | should have asked you, Ms. Snmith

Who is going to be your witness?

M5. SMTH: Qur witness we brought today is Jeff Painter.
However, if the conmm ssioners have any questions about Robert
Meredith's testinmony, we can nake M. Elder avail able.

CHAI R FENN: He's not currently online, is he? No, we

have no one online. Is he here; is M. Elder here?
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M5. SMTH:  No.

CHAI R FENN: We coul d get him on?
M5. SMTH. He is on standby.

CHAI R FENN: Got it. Okay.

And t hen -—-

MR. COOK: Jereny Cook appearing for Nucor Steel Utah. And

Nucor doesn't oppose a settlenent and we don't intend to put on any

witnesses and didn't file any testinmony. So we'd just ask to be

excused fromthe hearing.

CHAI R FENN: Meaning you don't want to sit through this?

MR. COOK: | mean, |I'mhappy to sit through it. Just we

don't need to be involved, so.

[ PRELI M NARY MOTI ONS]

CHAI R FENN: Okay. Well, that's the first thing we'll take

up.

I's there any objection to excusing M. Cook?

Al right. W'Ill excuse M. Cook on behalf of Nucor Steel.

Thank you for making an appearance to at | east note your
non-opposition. Thank you.

MR. COOK: Thank you.

CHAIR FENN: Ckay. Ms. Snith filed a notion to excuse M.

Robert Meredith we weren't able to review this |ast evening

It came

inquite late in the day, but we think she probably assumed we'd

grant this notion.

M. Gecu, do want to object?
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MR. GRECU: No, | do not.

CHAIR FENN: GCkay. | didn't think you woul d.

Okay. All right. Any objection? There's no objection
anong the conm ssioners, |'m sure

Okay. We'll excuse M. Meredith fromparticipating in the
hearing today.

[ON A SETTLEMENT STI PULATI ON]

CHAIR FENN: Okay. So we're here on a settlenent
stipulation. And the conpany sought to recover 471.6 mllion in
deferred EBA costs and the Division recomended a reduction of
$9, 018,316 in the EBA.

And my understanding is that the parties have agreed to an
adj ustment of 4.51 mllion to the original anount, which will result
in an EBA recovery of $467, 105, 308.

Is that correct; does that sound right?

M5. SM TH: Yes.

MR. GRECU: Yes, that's correct.

CHAIR FENN: Okay. All right. Well, | just wanted to get
that on the record. That's the heart of the matter that we're here
to discuss.

So we'll first have Rocky Mountain Power call its wtness.

MS. SM TH: Thank you. Rocky Mountain Power calls Jack
Painter as its first wtness.

CHAI R FENN: Ckay. M. Painter, welcone.

1
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BY MS. SM
Q
record?
A.
Q

A

Q

JACK PAI NTER
a witness herein, having been adni nistered an oath,
was exam ned and testified as follows.
EXAM NATI ON
TH:

M. Painter, can you state and spell your nanme for the

Yes. Jack Painter: J-A-C-K, P-AI-NT-E-R
And what is your role with the conpany?
I am a Net Power Cost Advi ser.

Have you caused to be filed direct testinmony in this

proceedi ng?

A.

Q

A

Q
testi nony,

A

Q

I have.

Do you have any changes or corrections to that testinony?
| do not.

And if | asked you the sane questions as listed in your
woul d your answers be the sane?

Yes.

And in your role, have you reviewed the settlenment

stipulation filed in this docket on Decenber 5th, 20257

A

Q

>

| have.

Do you have a summary of that?
| do.

Pl ease proceed.

Good norning, Chair Fenn, Comm ssioner Clark, and
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Comni ssi oner Harvey. M nane is Jack Painter. |'ma Net Power Cost
Advi ser for Rocky Mountain Power.

The conpany filed its annual EBA application on May 1st,
2025 for the deferral period of January 2024 through Decemnber 2024.
The conpany sought recovery of $471.6 nmillion consisting of:

$474.9 mllion for the deferral of excess EBA cost,

calcul ated as the difference between actual cost and base rates for

net power cost, willing revenue, and production tax credits
A $24.9 miillion credit for sales made to a speci al
cust oner;
A $9.2 mllion adjustnment for Utah situs resources;

A $24.2 mllion credit to reflect the 2024 EBA order

And $36.5 million in costs and credits related to smaller
items and interest.

The Division of Public Uilities and its consultant,
Daymar k, issued its annual EBA audit report on Novenmber 5th, 2025 and
proposed a reduction to the conpany's EBA application of
approximately $9 million on a Utah-allocated basis for three forward
mar ket transactions. No other parties filed testimony in this
proceedi ng.

The conpany and the DPU reached an all-issue settlenment
agreement on Novenber 20th, 2025, and the settlement stipulation was
filed with the Comm ssion on Decenber 5th, 2025.

Settlement terms included a $4.5 m|llion unspecified

reduction to the EBA and an agreenent by the conpany to make a filing
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with the Conm ssion before March 1st, 2026 reporting on progress to
i mprove its governance, review, and pre-approval process for power

physi cal transactions. After the unspecified adjustnent, the fina

EBA recovery is $467, 105, 308.

On behal f of Rocky Mountain Power, | respectfully request
the Commi ssion approve the filed EBA settlement stipulation which
resolves all issues in the EBA. Thank you.

CHAI R FENN: Thank you for your summry, M. Painter

Anything else, Ms. Smith, before we turn himover?

M5. SMTH: Yes; | would just like to move for adm ssion
for all pre-filed testinony, associated exhibits, and the settl ement
stipul ati on.

CHAIR FENN: That's a good idea. Thank you.

W t hout objection, we'll adnmit the pre-filed testinony and
exhi bits.

[Pre-filed testinmny, exhibits, and stipulation admtted.]

Ckay. M. Gecu, do you have questions of M. Painter?

MR. GRECU: No questions. Thank you.

CHAIR FENN: Okay. | just -- before we go to the
Comnmi ssi on questi ons:

We heard from Nucor Steel, who was here. | think there was
-- did the Utah Association of Energy Users -- they intervened in the
docket, did they not?

M5. SMTH: Correct.

CHAI R FENN: Ckay. And you've had di scussions -- one of
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the parties have had discussions with them Do we know —-

They never filed any testinmony. | assune we can concl ude
t hey have no objection.

But do you have any specific recollection of communications
with themyou can refer to?

MS. SMTH: Yes. 1'd say we're in frequent comunication
with all the parties. On matters relating to this procedure, UAE did
specify that they have no objection to this settlenent stipulation
and they do not intend to bring a witness today.

CHAI R FENN: Okay. Well, it was referenced in the preamble
of your settlenent stipulation that they filed it prior to testinony
being filed by other intervening parties. You' re committed to
working with other intervening parties on further settl ement
di scussions once they filed testinony; they didn't file testinony.

I think it was a | ogical conclusion for ne to nake, but |
wanted to just have you put it on the record that it appears that no
other party is participating besides the Division in this docket.

Okay. All right. Let's go to the Comm ssioners, then, for
questions, clarifying questions that they may have.

Commi ssi oner Cl ark.

COWM SSI ONER CLARK: Yeah, | don't have any questions.
Thank you.

CHAI R FENN: Ckay. Commi ssioner Harvey.

COWM SSI ONER HARVEY: Just a coupl e.

BY COW SSI ONER HARVEY:

Page 10

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-Utah@veritext.com 801-746-5080




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing - January 22, 2026

Q As was just nmentioned, there was no reply by either
parties or the conpany once Daymark and the Division's report was
filed; is that correct?

A My understanding is that after reaching settlenment terns
with the DPU that both the USDS [phonetic] and UAE and ot her parties
were notified of the discussions. And no further participation by
t hem was i ndi cat ed.

Q Right. | think | wasn't quite clear. | meant after the
Division's initial testinony that recommended a reduction

There hasn't been any response in the record other than the
settl ement by the conmpany; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. And given that the settlement ampunt is different
than the amount that was recommended in the division's testinony, is
it a reasonabl e assunption on ny part -- and you can say no if you
want -- that the conpany disagreed with the basis for the Division's
recomrended adj ust nent ?

A After receiving the testinony filed by the DPU and DaynarKk,
t he conmpany revi ewed the transactions that they called into question.

And whil e the conpany believes that the transactions were
i mportant to nmeet the system obligations and were prudently incurred,
it does take into consideration the concerns that the DPU fil ed about
its governance review policy and has acknow edged their concerns and
is working to inprove that review process and pre-approval process.

So it's inportant that the conpany acknow edges that, and

Page 11

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-Utah@veritext.com 801-746-5080




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing - January 22, 2026

we were able to reach the settlement ternms with the DPU that we think
is a kind of fair-anmpunts outcone for custoners and both the DPU and
t he conpany.

Q I'"'mgoing to ask a followup, and if it gets too detailed
into negotiations, feel free to ask your attorney if she thinks you
ought to answer it or not.

But is it a fair summary, then, to say that the conpany
recogni zed that while they felt the actions were prudent because of
need, that it didn't line up with the policies: and that's why
there's this now new or ongoing effort to either adjust those or at

| east exam ne them and figure out how to inplenment them going

f orwar d?
A. Yeah, | think that's correct and fair to say.
Q Ckay. | think that's all the questions | have. Thank you.
A Ckay.

CHAIR FENN: Ms. Smith, I'mgoing to ask a coupl e of
guestions, and M. Grecu, about some statements in the confidential
Daymark report. 1'Il tell you what page we're dealing with and
par agr aph.

And if you see any need for ne to have a notion to go into
cl osed session, we can do so. | don't think that this will be
confidential, but it could be.

BY CHAI R FENN:
Q So | want to ask about the collaboration that's referred to

on the third full paragraph on page 5 of the Daymark report.
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Do you have that before you, M. Painter?

A I do have the Daymark report, yes.
Q Okay. I'mjust curious. |In the second to the | ast
sentence there, you can read that for yourself, and I'll just read it

into the record.

"The Division and Daymark have been working col |l aboratively
with the conpany to inprove the quality and robustness of the
company's cont enpor aneous docunentation of trade purpose through
enhanced commerci al objective reports and other records.”

Could you tell ne what it is that you're doing in
col | aboration with the Division and Daymark?

A Before | answer that:

I'"m | ooking at page 5 of the audit report. Are you
referring to either the executive summary or their testinony?

Q Well, I"mreferring to page 5 of the actual report. |
think it may be in the sunmmary, the non-confidential summary, but |'m
not sure. |'mlooking at the confidential report, and |I'm on page 5.
The heading is "Natural Gas and Power Transactions”.

A Ckay. Yes, | am-- | do have that page.

Q And it's the second to the |last sentence in the third

paragraph that |'m aski ng about.

A Ckay. | got you.
I think to answer your question specifically, | am not
directly involved with that process between -- that has to do with

t he governance review policy. So | cannot answer to the specifics of

Page 13

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-Utah@veritext.com 801-746-5080




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing - January 22, 2026

what is being done with that, but that is something that we can
certainly provide you an answer for, | think, via |like a bench
request if you would like to have information on that before our
progress report on March 1st.

Q Maybe | can ask the Division witness the question, so that
wi |l probably suffice for now

But you're not involved in those discussions?

A | am not.

Q Okay. There's also a discussion in the next paragraph
about "The conpany shoul d aggressively seek options for indexed price
products and carefully evaluate their advantages and di sadvant ages
agai nst fixed price products.”

Are you involved in that work at all?

A I amnot. No, unfortunately not.

Q So you can't testify as to what's occurring there at all?

A No, that is part of our front office/ESM activity and |I'm
not involved in that group.

Q Just -- maybe you can el aborate.

Do you know who is involved at the -- let's say anong the
peopl e who have typically testified in the past at the Conm ssion;
woul d that be something M. Meredith would be involved with or
sonebody el se; and do you know who it would be that would have the
i nformati on on that?

CHAIR FENN: Ms. Smth, maybe you know.

MS. SMTH: Yeah, | was trying to map that to M. Painter
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THE W TNESS:

M5. SM TH:

THE W TNESS:

CHAI R FENN:

M5. SM TH:

CHAI R FENN:

THE W TNESS:

| do.
It would likely be M. M ke WIding.
Yes.
Okay. We know M. W ding.

He's presented before.

has al so testified before.

CHAI R FENN:

had not settled the case --

Okay. All right. Geat.
Yeah. M. WIlding and M. John Fritz, who
And M. WIding may have been present if we

entered into a settlenment stipulationis

a better way to put it.

MS. SM TH:
CHAI R FENN:

Ckay. Wl

I think we can excuse M.

here and thank you for your

THE W TNESS:

CHAI R FENN:
Wi t ness.

MR. GRECU:

CHAI R FENN:
you're going to refer
correct --

Vell, we'l

that question. | got

That's a fair assunption, yes.
Okay. Al right.
I don't think | have any other questions.
Pai nter. Thank you for being
summary. Appreciate it.
Thank you.
Okay. M. Grecu, we will let you call your
Thank you. The Division calls M. Gary Smth

Okay. And as far as the Daymark wi t nesses,

as necessary to their testinonies; is that
oath before we have him answer

get you under

ahead of myself there.
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GARY SM TH,
a witness herein, having been adm ni stered an oath,
was exam ned and testified as foll ows.
CHAIR FENN: Okay. Now I'Il ask the question:

We're not going to offer the testinony of M. Di Donmenico or

M . Koehler; is that correct -- live testinony?

MR. GRECU: That's correct.

CHAIR FENN: And M. Smith would be able to refer to the

Daymark report. And that's going to be part of your summry, |

suppose?

THE W TNESS: Yes. | can address that as best | can.
CHAIR FENN: Ckay. All right. Geat. Thank you.
Ckay. M. Gecu, we'll turn to you.

MR. GRECU:. Thank you.

EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. GRECU:

Q

M. Smith, could you please state and spell your name for

the record.

A
Q
A.

Techni cal

My name is Gary Smith: GARY, S-MI-T-H.

And by whom are you enployed and what is your position?
The Division of Public Uilities and I'ma Utility
Consul tant for them

And your business address?

It is 160 East, 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah.

And have you participated in this docket on behalf of the
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Di vi si on?

A Yes.

Q Did you review the conpany's filings in this docket and
responses to data requests?

A Yes.

Q And did you prepare and cause to be filed your direct

testinony and DPU Exhibits 1.1 DIR through 1.7 DIR on Novenber 5,

20257

A Yes.

Q And do you have any changes or corrections to those
filings?

A No, | don't.

Q And if | asked you the sane questions posed in that
testinony today, would you provide the sanme answers?

A Yes.

Q Do you adopt your pre-filed direct testinony as part of
your testinony today?

A Yes.

MR. GRECU. 1'd like to nove to admit M. Smith's direct
testinony and associ ated exhibits and the direct testinmony of Philip
Di Doneni co and Dan Koehler in DPU Exhibits 2. 1A DIR through 2.3 DR
and DPU Wor kpapers 1.

CHAI R FENN: Okay. Those are all the exhibits that are in
the docket; is that correct?

MR, GRECU: Correct.
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CHAIR FENN: Okay. All right. Wthout objection, we'l
admt M. Smith's direct testinony and exhibits and M. Di Donenico
and M. Koehler's testinmony and exhibits that are filed in the
docket .

[ Testi nmony and exhibits of Smith, Di Donenico, and Koehl er

admi tted.]

MR. GRECU:. Thank you.

CHAI R FENN:  Thank you.

BY MR. GRECU:

Q M. Smith, have you reviewed the settlement stipulation
filed in this docket?

A | have.

Q And is it the Division's position that the settlenment
stipulation resolving the issues in this docket is just and
reasonable in result?

A Yes.

Q And based on your know edge and experience, would approva
of the settlenent stipulation be just, reasonable, and in the public
i nterest?

A Yes, it would.

Q And have you prepared a summary to share supporting
approval of the settlenment stipulation?

A | have.

Q Pl ease proceed.

A Thank you.
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Good norni ng, Conmm ssioners. Thank you for the opportunity
to address Rocky Mountain Power's application for cost recovery in
t he Energy Bal ancing Account, or EBA, and the recommendations of the
Division and its consultant, Daymark Energy Advisors.

The Division has reviewed the conpany's application to
recover approximately $471.6 million in EBA costs from custoners.
Based on the Division's and Daymark's audit, the Division and Daynark
filed direct testinmny recommendi ng a total reduction of over 9
mllion to the conpany's request on a Utah-allocated basis for hedge
transactions that violate the conpany's corporate policy and
principles. This recomrendation conprised 10 trades, but 3 of which
were actual cost-related itens that affected the adjustnment.

I n Novenber and Decenber 2025, the Division engaged in
good-faith negotiations with Rocky Mountain Power, and based on those
negoti ati ons, reached a settlenment stipulation that was filed in this
docket. The settlenent stipulation sets forth that the Division and
the conpany have agreed to an unspecified adjustment of 4.51 nmillion
to the conpany's revised request for a total recovery of
$467, 105, 308.

In addition, the conpany agrees that before March 1, 2026,
it will report to the Comrission on its governance and pre-approva
process inprovenents to ensure that sufficient docunentation is
created and that enpl oyees obtain power physical transaction pre-
approval s as required.

This concludes nmy summary.
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MR. GRECU:

The witness is now avail able for cross-

exam nation and questions fromthe Commi ssion.

CHAIR FENN: Ms. Snmith, any cross?
M5. SMTH: No questi ons.
CHAIR FENN: Okay. All right.
Commi ssi oner Cl ark?
COW SSI ONER CLARK: | don't have any questions. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR FENN:  All right. Let's go to Comm ssioner Harvey.
BY COWM SSI ONER HARVEY:
Q Good nor ni ng.
A Good nor ni ng.
Q I knowthat -— I'd like to ask some questions about the

val ue that the DPU perceives in the review that the settlenent, |
guess, nenorializes: this idea that PacifiCorp is reviewing its
policies.

What is the main benefit or benefits that the Division sees
or hopes that that will acconplish?
Q You' re tal king about the settlement specifically?
A Yeah. Well, let me just make sure I'masking it right.

So in the settlenent, it says that the conpany will engage

and review that — will talk about the pre-approval and various
t hi ngs.
A Yeah.
Q And so I'm— fromthe Division's perspective, what val ue
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or what do we hope is acconplished by that?

A The portion of what we're hoping to receive by March 1st is
a plan presented by the conpany to address the things that we found
within our scope of our audit.

And there's — unfortunately, | don't have all the
informati on that we have regarding it with ne. But in Daymark's
testinony, page 9 — let ne just go ahead and read that.

"There were some concerns about a period of aggressive

natural gas hedging driven by a sudden change in nodel ed

requi rements. The acceptance of the natural gas swap
transactions reviewed is conditional on the expectation
that inmproved commercial objective docunentation devel oped
in Docket 24-35-10 will make the conpany's reasoning for
future discretionary trades possible to review. For power
physi cal hedgi ng, we recomended a cost disall owance based
on our review and supporting information provided."

So in that docket that was referenced in testinony, we have
been working with the conmpany to obtain docunmentation that gives us
the ability to evaluate what the purpose of that transacti on was,
what was attenpting to be acconplished in that, with sonme ot her
details about the thoughts behind it and why that was a wi se choice,
why they made that choice.

Q Ckay. Wuld you say that what the division is hoping or
expecting for is — I"mgoing to give you two options here:

One is a change in the conpany's policies that essentially
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bl esses the current behavi or but gives nore supporting docunmentation;

Or are you hoping for a change in behavior to match
policies?

A Well, | think it's both. | nean, we did find w thin our
scope of our audit that there were policies in place, but the
conmpany, in their pre-approval process and other things, did not neet
that policy. So it is a two-fold thing: both "What are you going to
do to make sure that that process is followed?", and second of all
"How do you beef it up to a point where it can be reviewed in
docunent ati on and under standi ng so sonmebody" --

You know, it's a difficult thing to do prudence reviews
just because of the anpbunt of data and amount of stuff that we have
to look at. So in order to facilitate that, we're asking the conpany
to cone to an understandi ng of what we face as a chall enge and how we
can be given what would nake it easier for us to sort of go through
t hat whol e process.

Q Thanks. That's hel pful

Thi nki ng about the specific issues that were found in this
case, in this review, ny understanding fromreading the testinmony is
that Daymark had a sanple -- as they put it: tens of thousands of
transactions, they took a relatively small sanple -- and then they
found some issues.

Once that was identified, was there any effort to then I ook
back at the | arger population of transactions and say, "Are there

ot her transactions that seemto potentially be in the sane category?"
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A That's a good question. | know that we were constrai ned on
tine alittle bit by the time we found it and got DRs back and
ever yt hi ng.

So | don't know that we explored that as well as maybe we
coul d have, and that night be something that we could do. And what
we're doing is kind of like step by step, right?

So we're going to beef up even our review to ensure that we
catch these things and see if we can't identify a trend or something
that would allow us to see if there were nore out there.

I do believe that they did some additional review, but
unfortunately | can't really speak to the specifics of that.

Q Okay. 1'd like you to look at your testinony. There's a
table called EBA Deferral History on page 6.

A Yeah.

Q And your testinony notes that there's obviously a
significant change toward the nore recent years. But |'mcurious in
particularly |ooking at the difference between 2022 and then the npst
recent two years, '23 and '24.

Is that primarily due to hedging; is that the biggest

factor or are there other -— | know the testinony di scusses sone
t hi ngs, but --
A That is a major factor in it. There were sone chall enges

with coal, specifically in Uah with the mne fire that linted
supply. And so they were kind of reacting to that sonewhat. They

did try to change the way they did things a little bit.
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And the conpany nay be able to address this better. But
basically they increased the price of coal because of the supply
i ssue to nake sure that their nmodels woul d keep a reserve anmount that
was required for themto keep to a certain degree.

And so | do know that those kind of —- there were sone
other factors that played into that, but | would say that nmarket
purchases were a key driver. And if you |look at the history of those
transactions specifically, you'll note that there was, both in cost
and | think volume, an increase in those which contributed
significantly to this.

Q Ckay. And just to clarify for the record, when you say
"They increased the price of coal", ny assunption is you nmean the
conmpany increased the input price of coal to their nodel

A Yes; that's our understanding, is they actually had to put
a true cost, is | think howthey referred to it, of balancing the
reserve that they were supposed to keep in case there were other
maj or factors that happened in the nmarkets that disallowed themthe
ability to access those.

Q I think that's all the questions | have. Thank you

A Thank you.

BY CHAI R FENN:

Q So M. Smith, just a followup on the questions
Comni ssi oner Harvey was asking you with respect to the significant
increases referred to in the deferral history on page 6 of your

testi nony.
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In the deferral period, it's ny understanding that the
company's mar ket purchases experienced a significant increase in cost
or price per negawatt hour. And what | saw in the testinony, you
recall this, from $17.17 per negawatt hour to $99.12 per nmegawatt
hour .

Does that sound fanmiliar to you?

A Yeah, yes.

Q Ckay. And these are purchased power transactions; is that
correct?

A Yes.

Q And the reason those were necessary is because what; is it

because the conpany's own generation was fully dispatched?
A. You know, the challenge is really trying to understand
that, right, fromour perspective as well
We think that the conpany has tried to manage its own

resources, its own plant generation, to mnimze those market

purchases. | mean, that's the hope.
So did they naxim ze those always: | don't know that |
could speak to that. | do know that, you know, given the challenges

that they faced --

One of the things that's a little bit challenging is trying
to distinguish between purchases nade for hedgi ng and purchases made
because of |ack of supply. Wen you make a market purchase for
hedgi ng, you' ve already conmtted to sonething and, you know, does

t hat change the bal ance of how you -- | nmean, you've got to sell it
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or you've got to use it. So does that inpact the ability for themto
make a choice to plant or to curtail it, right?

Q Ri ght .

A So, you know, that is a challenge. And the conpany, of
course, would speak better to that. And that's one of the things
that we're going to try to -- as we go through this process, the

company providing nore information to us so we can | ook at that and

ki nd of make a better -- | mean, answer this question better for you
for sure.
Q So a followup on that:

What types of information are you asking the conpany to
provide you to help you do a better analysis?
A. Well, we did go through, and the conpany has nade
efforts -- the division and its representative, Daymark, suggested
mar ket indexed purchases that would | essen that need to -- it would
just fit sort of better into certain areas of their hedging and
pl anni ng and stuff |ike that.
And at the time, the conpany said that those weren't
available to them But now we just attended a few nonths ago a
techni cal conference where they are now proposing to utilize
those -- | think they're currently doing that -- to better manage the
ri sk cost associated with the commtnent of making those narket
purchases for hedging and so forth.
Q So nore indexed price products versus fixed price products.

A Correct.
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Q That's the way the conpany is nmoving in that direction: to
| ook at those on a nore frequent basis?

A Yes. It's going to becone nore key into their planning and
acqui sition of product for the conpany.

Q Let me ask you the same question | asked of the conpany's
wi tness, M. Painter.

So turning back to page 5 of the Daymark report, |
referenced the phrase, "The Division and Daymark have been working
col l aboratively with the conpany to inprove the quality and
robust ness of the conpany's contenporaneous docunentation of trade
pur poses through the enhanced comrerci al objective reports and ot her
records.”

Can you el aborate on that as far as what the collaborative
process is?

A Well, what we've done so far is the conmpany had sort of
provided a format of what the reports would | ook |ike. W kind of
eval uated that with our consultant, Daymark. They gave sone
f eedback, which the conpany then inpl enented.

And they have since provided us with sone sanple -- you
know, we just asked them --

And in review ng those, we've becone confortable that
Daymark is able to nore effectively evaluate the purpose of why they
made that decision at that tinme for that price.

Q And how are they able to do that; how can they nore

effectively evaluate that?
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A Just with a nore robust anmount of information given. So
the trader and those involved are creating these reports that go on
record in their conpany, and then we can request those to | ook at
them And in hindsight, we can kind of see if it nade sense at the
time.

Q So I'"'mtrying to understand -- again, back to the Daymark
report with respect to the 10 power physical transactions that were
studi ed and for which there was an assertion that they were a
viol ation of the corporate governance and approval s policy.

Is it the position of the Division -- or of Daymark that
the primary violation of the conmpany's governance and approval s
policy was that a trader exceeded its del egated authority under the
policy?

A Yes, that was the major violation. They went above what
they were given.

Q And the conmpany's taking steps to renediate that, as
understand it.

A That's what we understand as well

Q And do you know what those are?

>

We'll know March 1st, | guess.

Q We'll figure that out on March 1st when we get the report?
A Yeah. | wasn't involved with the confidential
negotiations, so | don't know if sonething was shared there that
woul d better answer your question. But | do know that there is a

comri tment involved there and we can hope that what we get is
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sufficient. If not, we'll be able to evaluate it and hopefully,
t hrough sonme negoti ati ons, again, cone to some kind of better
under st andi ng and hopefully they can beef up their process.

Q I'"mjust trying to understand the process. | don't have
the advantage of ny fellow comm ssioners having a | ong history of
goi ng through EBA proceedings. So |I'mtrying to understand.

I'"mjust looking at this on a forward-going basis, and
perhaps we'll |earn nmore about that after this report is filed, as we

have ot her proceedings.

A Sure.
Q But I want to refer to the Division's audit report now, if
I can, and just have you -— I'mdealing with production tax credits

i ssues, the PTCs.
A Okay.
Q And I'mreferring on page 36 and 37 of the audit report.
Do you have that?
A | don't.
Q Can we get a copy for you?
A. I"msorry, | didn't bring that up.
Q Okay. Well, you probably didn't think you were going to

need it, so | understand.

A No, | apol ogi ze.

Q But I'lIl just refer to it.

A. Yeah, if you don't mnd. | have a good understandi ng.
Q It states in the audit report, "This is the fourth
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consecutive EBA audit year in which the Division and Daymark have
noted unrealized generation from PTC-eligible wind facilities."

A Correct.

Q And then it indicates that there's an estinmated $20 mllion
in the 2024 deferral recovery and increased recovery due to

unreal i zed PTCs.

A Ri ght .
Q So then you tal k about concerns and how to address those
going forward -- or at |least the audit report does, not you

necessarily personally.

So I'Il just ask about your recollection of —- do we need
to go through these or do you recollect what the Division's
recomrendati ons were, what they think needs to be done to address the

i ssue of underperformance of the wind assets?

A I"'mfamliar with that issue because it's been ongoing for
a while.

Q Ckay. Can you illumnate me as to what --

A -- why those are?

Q I understand why. Tell me what the plans are going forward

to address that.
A. Do we -— I'"'msorry, | don't have the benefit of --—
MR. GRECU:. Chair Fenn, --
CHAI R FENN: Yeah, the conpany should file -- the
Conmi ssi on should demand a broad anal ysis to understand how

sensitive -- |I'mtal king about the audit report.
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THE W TNESS: Ri ght, right.

MR. GRECU: Chair Finn, do you want me to -- | can provide

the witness an el ectronic copy.

CHAI R FENN: That would be perfect. 1'mnot going to

prolong this, but -

MS. SMTH: Do you mind repeating what page you're reading?

CHAIR FENN: Yeah, |'mon page 36 and 37. |'msorry.

MS. SMTH: 36 and 37 within the docunent?
CHAIR FENN: W thin the docunent within the audit
BY CHAI R FENN:

Q Ckay. So maybe you can look at that. Instead of

report.

me

reading themout, |'d prefer that you just tell me what your concerns

are and what, | take it to be, your recommendati ons going f

or war d.

I"mjust looking at this on a going forward basis.

A Yeah. Okay.

M5. SMTH: Can | also just touch base and remni nd the

witness that we are | ooking at confidential information and to

navi gate that accordingly.

CHAI R FENN: Yeah, and that's why | made that coment

earlier. | don't want to get into sonething that you would think
woul d be confidential. | nean, it is on a confidential page, so.
A So these are nostly addressing the — starting fromthe

begi nning, if we were to propose a new wi nd plant; is that
Q Yeah.

A Ckay. | didn't know if we had anything el se add

tional,
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but that is the key thing. Wat we've noticed is -- and having dealt
with this outside of nmy time with the division -- people, when they
present a product, often oversell that a little bit. It's not

uncommon, right? They're trying to bring the best foot forward and
ever yt hi ng.

And unfortunately those don't always pan out, especially
when there's a tax credit involved where you're trying to neet a
certain dollar anbunt to make it penciled, to make it worth people's
whi | e.

So the division is recommending that if the conpany does
present sonething new, that it should be evaluated on sort of the
format that we suggest here. Rather than dealing with
specul ative -- a lot of these plants that we're | ooking at that had
PTCs attached to them were re-powered assets, sone of which were only
| ess than 10 years old. And the analysis to redo that, and then yet
they wanted to depreciate it over a 30-year period: | nean, there's
just kind of -— 1 nmean, a wind plant is a little bit conplex,
especially when you throw PTCs in it.

So whatever we can do to help with that pre-approva
process, to really kind of vet it out. And that's a hard thing
because we're relying on information not just fromthe conpany, but
al so the conpanies selling or providing that product or that w nd

generati on equi pment.

So a lot of it's what their track record is. | don't know
if we could find that, whether or not — | nean, this is just a good
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exanpl e because everybody was kind of coming in with fresh eyes and
trying to understand what it was being presented. And we just took
the best faith effort to evaluate that and to provide what we
thought. | think we may have even questioned sonme of that in those
dockets at the tinme. They seened kind of a little hopeful in sone of
their nunmbers and so forth.

Q Okay. | think the nore | probe into this, the nore I'm
convinced that we will wait and see what we get in the March 1st
report and then subsequent discussions of hedging.

A Yeah. We can definitely make this nore a part of the big
pi cture.

Q I don't think anybody's cone prepared today to get into the
nuances of the audit report or the Daymark report.

I do want to ask one question what your understandi ng of
the Daymark analysis is. And it nmay be that it's constrained by tine
and the ampbunt of the consulting contract.

But |'m curious how they arrived at the sanple size of 46
broadly represented sanples of which 38 of those were related to
hedging. How did they arrive at that sanple size?

A Yeah, it's unfortunate we don't have themto speak to this.

I do know that they do sonme anount of sanpling. | don't
know i f they throw it into sonething and --

But also they do try to flag things that stand out to begin
with. | know there's that.

We could definitely maybe make this a part of the March
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1st.

Q Yeah, |I'mjust curious. And | gave you what nmy supposition
was: it may be limted to based upon the tinme they had and the cost
associated with it.

A There's definitely that, yeah

Q But I'mjust curious to say, | nmean, do they view that or
do you view that as a statistically significant sanple size out of
tens of thousands of trading transactions?

A Yeah, | see what your concern is. And | unfortunately
can't really speak to that directly. But | also have that question a
little bit.

Q Okay. All right.

A. I do know that the 42 is after sort of a pre-sorting pre-
eval uation; it's not, you know, we just grab 42. | nean, there is
sonet hing i nvolved with how they got to that 42.

Q Okay. And | think Conm ssioner Harvey asked this question,
| just want to make sure |I'm cl ear.

So the 10 transactions that you exanined that you found had
sonme questions about: was that 10 out of the 38 hedging transactions
and out of the sanple size of 38, or was there a broader universe

t hat was | ooked at?

A I think that | actually think that cane from a broader
review. | hate to speak for them but ny understanding --
Q I don't have anybody to ask. Unfortunately, they're not
here.
Page 34

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-Utah@veritext.com 801-746-5080




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing - January 22, 2026

A I know, and | apol ogi ze. M understandi ng was that they
did find sort of something and that created a, you know, "Hey, we
shoul d maybe | ook and see if there is nmore of this" kind of scenario.

So I'"'msorry; | wish | could provide a better answer.

Q It's okay. Well, | don't think |I have any other questions.
| appreciate you indulging me, M. Snmith. Thank you very much
A Thank you for the questions. It's always good.

[CHAIR S THOUGHTS]

CHAIR FENN:  And I'Ill just observe:

I"'mnot trying to blow up the settlement here. |
understand settlenments are favored and I'm not asking those questions
because I'mhostile to the settlement. |I'mtrying to gain greater
under st andi ng of the process by which the analysis is perforned.

But that perhaps will be something I'lIl be illum nated on
as we go forward. | think we'll have -- we'll see what we get in the
report. And | think we may be having a technical conference on
hedgi ng that we've tal ked about. And so we'll talk about that down
the road, |'m sure.

I think you can be excused.

THE W TNESS: Thank you. Thank you for your tine.

CHAI R FENN: Ckay. Thank you, M. Smith

Okay. Let's see if anything in summation or anything el se
that parties have.

Ms. Smith, anything fromyou?

MS. SM TH: Not hing further.
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CHAIR FENN: M. Grecu?

MR. GRECU: Nothing further fromthe Division. Thank you.

CHAI R FENN: Okay. Conmi ssioner Clark?

COW SSI ONER CLARK:  Thank you, Chair Fenn. | don't have

anyt hi ng el se.

CHAI R FENN:  Conmi ssi oner Harvey?

COW SSI ONER HARVEY: | don't have anything either

CHAIR FENN: Okay. Well, | already gave ny thoughts.
Based upon the fact we've got a stipulated settlenent here, we'll
nove forward based on the statutory framework of stipulated
settlements being favored in the law. And we'll issue an order here
shortly on this.

So -- about that: under an hour -- we'll adjourn. Thank
you very much.

[ Adj ourned at 9:52 a.m|]
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REPORTER S CERTI FI CATE
STATE OF UTAH )
COUNTY OF UTAH )

I, Spencer Von Jarrett, a Certified Shorthand Reporter,
Regi stered Professional Reporter, hereby certify:

THAT the foregoing proceedi ngs were taken before me at the
time and place set forth in the caption hereof; that the witness was
pl aced under oath to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but
the truth; that the proceedi ngs were taken down by me in shorthand
and thereafter nmy notes were transcribed through conputer-aided
transcription; and the foregoing transcript constitutes a full, true,
and accurate record of such testinony adduced and oral proceedi ngs
had, and of the whol e thereof.

| have subscribed ny name on this 29th day of January,

2026.

Soen )

Spencer Von Jarrett

Regi stered Professional Reporter #993793
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Utah Rules of Civil Procedure
Part V. Depositions and Discovery

Rule 30

(E) Submission to Witness; Changes; Signing.

Within 28 days after being notified by the officer
that the transcript or recording is available, a
witness may sign a statement of changes to the form
or substance of the transcript or recording and the
reasons for the changes. The officer shall append

any changes timely made by the witness.

DISCLAIMER: THE FOREGOING CIVIL PROCEDURE RULES
ARE PROVIDED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.
THE ABOVE RULES ARE CURRENT AS OF APRIL 1,

2019. PLEASE REFER TO THE APPLICABLE STATE RULES

OF CIVIL PROCEDURE FOR UP-TO-DATE INFORMATION.




VERITEXT LEGAL SOLUTIONS

COMPANY CERTIFICATE AND DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
Veritext Legal Solutions represents that the
foregoing transcript is a true, correct and complete
transcript of the colloquies, questions and answers
as submitted by the court reporter. Veritext Legal
Solutions further represents that the attached
exhibits, if any, are true, correct and complete
documents as submitted by the court reporter and/or
attorneys in relation to this deposition and that
the documents were processed in accordance with

our litigation support and production standards.

Veritext Legal Solutions is committed to maintaining
the confidentiality of client and witness information,
in accordance with the regulations promulgated under
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA), as amended with respect to protected
health information and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, as
amended, with respect to Personally Identifiable
Information (PII). Physical transcripts and exhibits
are managed under strict facility and personnel access

controls. Electronic files of documents are stored




in encrypted form and are transmitted in an encrypted
fashion to authenticated parties who are permitted to
access the material. Our data is hosted in a Tier 4

SSAE 16 certified facility.

Veritext Legal Solutions complies with all federal and
State regulations with respect to the provision of
court reporting services, and maintains its neutrality
and independence regardless of relationship or the
financial outcome of any litigation. Veritext requires
adherence to the foregoing professional and ethical
standards from all of its subcontractors in their

independent contractor agreements.

Inquiries about Veritext Legal Solutions'
confidentiality and security policies and practices
should be directed to Veritext's Client Services
Assoclates indicated on the cover of this document or

at www.veritext.com.
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